Board of County Commissioners Business Meeting Minutes – DRAFT

A complete video copy and packet including staff reports of this meeting can be viewed at https://www.clackamas.us/meetings/bcc/business.

Thursday, September 5, 2024 - 10:00 AM

In person and via virtual technology (Zoom)

PRESENT: Chair Tootie Smith

Commissioner Ben West Commissioner Paul Savas Commissioner Martha Schrader Commissioner Mark Shull

CALL TO ORDER

I. PRESENTATION

- A. Recognition of the 2024 Clackamas County SPIRIT of Excellence Award Recipients
 - 1. Evelyn Minor-Lawrence of Human Resources announced SPIRIT Awards for 10 County employees:

Jennifer Ariel, Clackamas 911

Clyde Fry, Business & Community Services

Jonathan Lee, Facilities Management

Von Lee, Finance

Jared Haddock, Human Resources

Scott McCombs, North Clackamas Parks & Rec

Marco Enciso, Health, Housing & Human Services

Chrystie Wade, Health, Housing & Human Services

Meghan Frogner, Health, Housing & Human Services

II. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Elected Officials

- 1. Approval of Previous Business Meeting Minutes BCC
- *Approval of a Goods and Services contract with BlueCrest for a mail ballot sorter and related software. Contract value is \$689,931. Funding through Clerk Fees and \$289,771 in budgeted County General Funds. – County Clerk

B. *Finance

 Approval of a Goods and Services Contract with KONE, Inc. for Elevator Maintenance and Repair Services at County facilities. Contract value not to exceed \$235,150.47 over 4 years and 10 months. Funding is through departmental cost allocations, which may include a small portion of budgeted County General Funds. 2. Approval of a Subrecipient Agreement with the Oregon Department of Emergency Management for infrastructure damaged in the 2024 Ice Storm. Anticipated agreement value is \$518,000. Funding is through the Federal Emergency Management Agency. No County General Funds are involved.

C. *Tourism

- 1. Approval of Amendment #1 to a Professional Services Contract with Travel Portland to implement portions of the regional tourism plan. Amendment value is \$177,743 for 1 year, total contract value is increased to \$336,200 for 2 years. Funding is through Travel Portland. No County General Funds are involved.
- 2. Approval of a Professional Services Contract with Fish Marketing & Strategy to provide social media advertising management. Total contract value is not to exceed \$675,000 over five years. Funding is through Transient Lodging Tax. No County General Funds are involved.

D. *Health, Housing, & Human Services

- 1. Approval of a Subrecipient Grant Agreement with Northwest Family Services for expanding treatment of and recovery services for pregnant women with Substance Use Disorders. Agreement value is \$200,000 for 2 years. Funding is through Opioid Settlement Funds. No County General Funds are involved.
- Approval of a Subrecipient Grant Agreement with Northwest Family Services to expand access to school-based prevention programs. Agreement value is \$100,000 for 1 year. Funding is through Opioid Settlement Funds. No County General Funds are involved.
- 3. Approval of a Subrecipient Grant Agreement with The 4th Dimension Recovery Center for expanding treatment of Substance Use Disorders. Agreement value is \$99,995.14 for 1 year. Funding is through Opioid Settlement Funds. No County General Funds are involved.
- 4. Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement with Oregon State University for Healthy Private Well Stewardship. Agreement value is \$50,350 for ten months. Funding is through the Oregon Health Authority. No County General Funds are involved.
- 5. Approval to apply to the Veterans Health Administration Innovation Ecosystem Suicide Prevention Grant to develop and implement new strategies in reducing Oregon's Veteran suicide rate. Anticipated value is \$750,000 over 2 years. Funding is through the US Department of Veterans Affairs. No County General Funds are involved.
- 6. Approval of Amendment #1 updating the language and adjusting the rate of a Revenue Intergovernmental Agreement with the State of Oregon for the Public Health Medicaid Administrative Claiming program. Amendment has no fiscal impact, agreement value remains \$1,900,000 over 5 years. Funding is through the Oregon Health Authority. No County General Funds are involved.
- 7. Approval of a Personal Services Contract with Technical Resource Management, LLC for Behavioral Health Laboratory Testing Services. Contract value is \$900,000 for 5 Years. Funding is through Health Centers Fees for Services. No County General Funds are involved.

- 8. Approval of Amendment #1 to a Fixed Price Revenue Subagreement from Oregon State University for parenting education program. Amendment value is \$98,035 for 1 year. Agreement value increased to \$274,098 for 2 years. Funding is through Oregon State University. No County General Funds are involved.
- 9. Approval of a Public Improvement Contract with Pacific Sun Construction LLC for the Phase 2 of Haven House Building Improvements Project. Agreement value is \$567,576.20 for 10 months. Funding is through Federal Community Development Block Grant Funds. No County General Funds are involved.
- 10. Approval to Apply for a Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund Discretionary Grant for updating the Clackamas County Transit Development Plan. Application value is \$300,000 for 2 years. Funding is through Statewide Transportation Improvement Funds. No County General Funds are involved.
- 11. Approval to Apply for a Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund Discretionary Grant for the support of the Mt Hood Transit Enhancements project. Application value is \$450,000 for 2 years. Funding is through Statewide Transportation Improvement Funds. No County General Funds are involved.
- 12. Approval to Apply for a Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund Discretionary Grant for the purchase of two new vehicles for use on the Mt Hood Express. Application value is \$350,000 for 2 years. Funding is through Statewide Transportation Improvement Funds. No County General Funds are involved.

E. *Transportation & Development

- Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Oregon City to transfer a portion of S Forsythe Road. Total value is \$23,590. Funding through Community Road Fund. No County General Funds are involved.
- 2. Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement with Water Environment Services for Right of Way Services. Total value is \$225,000 over 5 years. Funding is through Water Environment Services Sanitary Sewer & Surface Water Construction funds. No County General Funds are involved.
- 3. Approval of Amendment #3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement with the State of Oregon for the Fire Hardening Grant program. Amendment has no fiscal impact, agreement remains \$172,072. Funding through State of Oregon. No County General Funds are involved.
- 4. Approval of a Funding Agreement with the Clackamas County Arts Alliance to support businesses, organizations, entrepreneurs and public art exhibitions throughout the County. Agreement value is \$110,000 for 1 year. Funding through County-allocated Lottery Dollars. No County General Funds are involved.
- 5. Approval of a Funding Agreement with the Museum of the Oregon Territory to provide educational programs, cultural and historical preservation and to maintain and manage the facility and venue. Agreement value is \$100,000 for 1 year. Funding through County-allocated Lottery Dollars. No County General Funds are involved.
- 6. Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement with Oregon Department of Transportation for Technical Services on the OR 224 at Amisigger Road Roundabout Project. Total value is \$35,000. Funding through Community Road Fund. No County General Funds are involved.

- 7. Approval to apply for a Metro Regional Flexible Funds Allocation for the Sunrise Corridor. Funding request is \$15,000,000. Funding through Metro Regional Flexible Funds Bond, with matching funds through the County Road Fund. No County General Funds are involved.
- 8. Approval of a Resolution Declaring the Public Necessity and purpose for Acquisition of Right of Way, Easements and Fee Property and Authorizing Good Faith Negotiations and Condemnation Actions for the Johnson Creek Blvd (79th Place to End of County Maintenance) Improvements Project. Total project value is \$6,173,749. Funding is through HB2017 Funds. No County General Funds are involved.
- Approval of Personal Services Contract with Kittelson & Associates, Inc. for the Stafford-65th-Elligsen Roundabout Project. Total Contract value is \$1,407,863.44. Funding through the Strategic Investment Fund (Community Road Fund), Countywide Transportation System Development Charges, and Local Agencies. No County General Funds are involved.
- 10. Approval of Amendment #9 with P&C Construction for added solar panels for the Gladstone Public Library project. Amendment value is \$188,673.21. Funding through County Sustainability funds. No County General Funds are involved.

Chair Smith asked if any commissioner wished to remove any item, no requests were heard.

Commissioner West: "I move to approve the consent agenda as read." Commissioner Schrader seconded the motion. No further discussion was heard.

Commissioner West Aye Commissioner Savas Aye Commissioner Schrader Aye Commissioner Shull Aye Chair Smith Aye; motion passes 5-0.

Chair Smith recessed as the Board of County Commissioners and convened as the North Clackamas County Parks and Recreation District.

III. NORTH CLACKAMAS COUNTY PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT CONSENT AGENDA

- A. Approval of Amendment #1 to an Intergovernmental Grant Agreement with the Oregon Department of Human Services for transportation services and equipment. Amendment adds 1 year, grant value remains \$25,000 over 2 years. Funding is through the State of Oregon. No County General Funds involved.
- B. Approval of Amendment #2 to an Intergovernmental Grant Agreement with the Oregon Department of Human Services for transportation services and equipment. Amendment adds \$25,000, grant value is increased to \$50,000 over 2 years. Funding is through State of Oregon. No County General Funds involved.

Chair Smith asked if any director wished to remove any item, no requests were heard.

Director Shull: "I move to approve the North Clackamas County Parks and Recreation District consent agenda." Director Savas seconded the motion. No further discussion was heard.

Director West Aye
Director Savas Aye
Director Schrader Aye
Director Shull Aye
Chair Smith Aye; motion passes 5-0.

Chair Smith adjourned as the North Clackamas County Parks and Recreation District Board and convened as the Water and Environment Services Board.

IV. WATER AND ENVIRONMENT SERVICES CONSENT AGENDA

- A. Approval of Amendment #7 to a Contract with Tyler Technologies, Inc., for utility billing software and support. Amendment value is \$152,481.69 and 2 years, increasing total contract value to \$781,874.32 over 24 years and 10 months. Funding is through Water Environment Services Sanitary Sewer and Surface Water Operating funds. No County General Funds are involved.
- B. Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement with Clackamas County for Right of Way Services. Total value is \$225,000 over 5 years. Funding is through Water Environment Services Sanitary Sewer & Surface Water Construction funds. No County General Funds are involved.

Chair Smith asked if any director wished to remove any item, no requests were heard.

Director Savas: "I move we approve the consent agenda for WES." Director Schrader seconded the motion. No further discussion was heard.

Director West Aye
Director Savas Aye
Director Schrader Aye
Director Shull Aye
Chair Smith Aye; motion passes 5-0.

Chair Smith adjourned as the Water and Environment Services Board and convened as the Development Agency Board.

V. DEVELOPMENT AGENCY CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approval of a Personal Services Contract with Harper Houf Peterson-Righellis, Inc., for Construction Services relating to the SE Monroe Street Improvements Project. Total Value is \$1,334,013. Funding is through North Clackamas Revitalization Area Funds. No County General Funds are involved.

Chair Smith asked if any director wished to remove any item, no requests were heard.

Director Shull: "I move for approval of the Development Agency consent agenda." Director Savas seconded the motion. No further discussion was heard.

Director West Aye
Director Savas Aye
Director Schrader Aye
Director Shull Aye
Chair Smith Aye; motion passes 5-0.

Chair Smith adjourned as the Development Agency Board and reconvened as the Board of County Commissioners.

VI. PUBLIC COMMUNICATION

Chair Smith opened the meeting for public testimony.

Les Poole (Clackamas) – Yard signs, Sunrise Corridor, general cost of living Chair Smith closed the meeting for public testimony.

VII. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR UPDATE

County Administrator Gary Schmidt recognized the Health, Housing and Human Services staff for their work on a new suicide prevention program in collaboration with the Sherriff's Department.

VIII. COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATION

Commissioner Schrader made comments on childcare.

Commissioner West made comments on the County's high-quality staff, HB4002 funding, Los Flores housing and 23 hour stabilization center.

Commissioner Shull made comments on the County's valued employees, fentanyl use and the upcoming election.

Commissioner Savas made comments on the value of County employees, cost of living and the Sunrise Corridor.

Chair Smith made comments on wildfires and Supportive Housing Services tax changes

Chair Smith adjourned the meeting at 11:01